
TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 





TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

Independent Auditor's Report I -2 

BASJC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 
Statement of net position 5 
Statement of activities 6 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Balance sheet - governmental funds 8 
Reconciliatioii oftlie governmental funds balance sheet 9 

to the statement of net position 
Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances — 3 0 

governmental funds 
Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and 11 

changes in fund balances of governmental funds to the statement of activities 
Statement of net position - proprietary funds 12 
Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net 13 

assets - proprietary funds 
Statement of cash flows - proprietary funds 14-15 

Notes to basic financial statements 16-42 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Budgetary comparison schedule: 

General fund 44-46 
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share ofNet Pension Liability 4? 
Schedule of Employer's Pension Contributions 48 

Notes to Required Supplernentary Infonrialion 49 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of operating revenues and expenses - proprietary fund 5 3 

RELATED REPORTS 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial 53-54 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 55-56 

Status of Prior Years Findings 57-59 

Schedule of Mayor and Alderman Compensation 60 

Schedu le of Rates and Accounts Receivable 61 

Schedule of Insurance 62 

Sclieduie of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency 63 
Head or Chief Executive Officer 

Judicial System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 64 



VIGE, TUJAGUE ̂  NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

151 N. STREET 
P.O. BOX 1006 

EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535 
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., C.P.A TELEPHONE 
FRANK G. TUJAGUE. C.P.A. 337-A57-9324 
DOMINrOUE M. NOEL C PA FAX: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Alderman 
Town of Leonville, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Leonville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's ResponsihUlty for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

A uditor's Rcsponsibiiity 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in (he financial 
Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Leonville, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgelar)^ comparison information 
and pension schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the informaiion for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the inforrnalion 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing informaiion, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is no: affected by this missing information. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town 
of Leonville, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
judicial system funding schedule^ and the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, and as 
listed in the table of contents, as required by the Slate of Louisiana, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, judicial system funding schedule and the schedule of 
compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, judicial system funding schedule and the schedule of compensation, benefits, 
and other payments to agency head are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Anditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2021, on our 
consideration of the Town of Leonville, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matlers. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Leonville, Louisiana's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Vige^ Tujague & Noel 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 14, 2021 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Slatemenl ofNel Position 

June 30, 2021 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Curreni assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables, net 

Unbilled receivables 

Prepaid insurance 

Unamortized revenue bond insurance 

Otherasseis 

$ 104,895 

18,094 

13,040 

S 1,029,812 3 

132,471 

54,642 

49.504 

29,240 

156 

; 1.134,707 

150,565 

54,642 

62,544 

29,240 

156 

Total current assets 136,029 1,295,825 1,431,854 

Noncurrent assets: 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Capital assets, net 1,657,694 

63,330 

11,072,405 

63330 

12,730.099 

Total noncurrent assets 1,657,694 11,135,735 12,793,429 

Total assets 1,793,723 12,431,560 14,225,283 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 57,321 102,451 159.772 

LlABtLlTlES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 

Compensated absences 

Curreni portion of bonds payable 

10,099 

4.522 

132,896 

9,784 

180,000 

142,995 

14,306 

180,000 

Total current liabilities 14,621 322,680 337,301 

Noncurrent liabilities; 

Customers deposits payable 

Revenue bonds payable 

Unamortized revenue bond premium 

Net pension liability 239,897 

32.315 

5.150,000 

430,986 

3S6.S20 

32,315 

5,150,000 

430,986 

626,717 

Total noncurrent liabilities 239.897 6,000,121 6,240,0)8 

Tota) liabilities 254,518 6,322,801 6,577,319 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 19,947 64,358 84,305 

NET POSITION 

Invested in capita) assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for debt service 

Unrestricted 

1,657,694 

{SI.115) 

11.072,405 

63,330 

(4,988,883) 

12.730,099 

63,330 

(5,069,998) 

Total net position S 1,576,579 $ 6,146,852 S ; 7,723,431 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Aciiviiies 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety: 

Police 
Streets 
Total govern mental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Utility 

Total business-type activities 

Total 

Expenses 

347.735 

1,792,138 
1,792,138 

TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Activities 

For the Vear Ended June 30,2021 

Program Revenues 
Fees, Fines 

and Charges 
for Services 

$ 69,583 S 

172,345 
105,807 

22,607 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

26,341 

900 

CapKal 
Grants and 

Contributions 

6,250 
22,607 27,241 6.250 

1,660,201 
1,660,201 

$ 2,139,873 S 1,682,808 S 27,24) 6,250 

Genera] revenues; 
Taxes -

Franchise and chain store taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Jnlergovemmencal 
Interest and investment earnings 
Nonempioyer pension contributions 
Miscellaneous 
Capital contributions 
Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Changes in net assets 

Net position - June 30,2020 
Net position - June 30, 2021 

Net (Expenses) Revenues and 
Changes in Net Position 

Govemmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

S (43,242) S - $ (43,242) 

(148,838) - (148,838) 
(99,557) - (99,557) 

(291,63?) - (291,637) 

(131.937) (131,937) 
- (131,937) (131,937) 

(291,637) (131,937) (423,574) 

71,019 7].0]9 
31,349 - 31,349 
57,966 - 57,966 

11 897 90S 
5.S52 11,871 17,723 
4,033 52.303 56,334 

- 43,830 43,830 
54,297 (54,297) -

224,525 54,604 279,129 
(67,112) (77,333) (144,445) 

1,643,691 6,224,185 7,867,876 
S 1,576,579 S 6,146,852 S 7,723,431 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30^ 2021 

Gsneral 
Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 104,895 
Receivables 

Franchise fees receivable 11,305 
Grants receivable 90O 
Intergovernmental receivable 5,889 

Prepaid insurance 13,040 
Total assets _$ 136.029 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable S 6,200 
Accrued liabilities 3,899 

Total liabilities 10,099 

Fund balances; 
Unassigned 125,930 

Total fund balance 125,930 

Total liabilities and fund balance S 136,029 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Reconcilialion of ihe GoveniitKntal Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement ofNet Position 
June 30, 2021 

Tola! fund balances for governmental funds at June 30, 2021 $ 125.930 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement 
ofnet position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those 
assets consist of: 

Land 
Buildings, net of$142,102 accumulated depreciation 
Infrastructure, net of$440,334 accumulated depreciation 
Equiprnent & other, net of$122,969 accumulated depreciation 

S 8,912 
57,720 

1,572,027 
19,035 1,657,694 

Amounts related to pension recognition are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds (202,523) 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 

Compensated abences 

Total net position of governmental activities ai June 30, 2021 

(4,522) 

$ 1,576,579 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial slaieinents. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Staiement oFRevenues, £^q?enditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances-
Govemmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Revenues: 
Licenses and permits 
Franchise fees 
Fines and forfeits 
Inter^ovemmenia] 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 
Expenditures: 
Current -

General government 
Public safety; 

Police 
Streets and drainage 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

31,349 
71,019 
22,607 
91,457 

4,042 
220.474 

64,553 

159,889 
26,025 
10,969 

261,436 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (40,962) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers ir\ 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

80,296 

80,296 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other 
sources over expenditures 
and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balances, ending 

39,334 

86,596 

$ 125,930 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVlLLa LOUISIANA 
Reconcitiaiion of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Total net changes in fund balances at June 30, 2021 per Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances $ 39,334 

The change in net position reported forgovemmental activities in the 
statement of activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as e>penditures. 
However, In the statement of activities, the cost ofthose assets is 

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. 

Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on Statement of 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances $ 10,969 
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,2021 (94,906) (83,937) 

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures 
in the govemmental funds. 

Compensated absences (4,522) 

Net effect of pension liability recognition S,012 

Net effect of pension liability allocation (25,999) 

Total clianges in net position at June 30, 2021 per Statement of Activities $ (67.112) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tJie basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Proprierary Fund 

Statemeni of Net Position 
June 30,2021 

ASSETS Utility Fund 
Cash $ 1,029,812 
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 132,471 
Unbilled receivables 54,642 
Other receivables 156 

Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 63,330 

Prepaid insurance 49,504 
Unarnonized revenue bond insurance 29,240 
Utility property plant and equipment 17,074,588 
Accumulated depreciation (6,002,183) 

Total assets 12,431,560 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 102,451 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 97,455 
Accrued liabilities 22,116 
Cornpensated absences 9,784 
Accrued interest payable 13,325 
Current portion of revenue bonds payable 180,000 

Total current liabilities 322,680 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Payable from restricted assets-
Customers'deposits 32,315 
Revenue bonds payable 5,150,000 
Unamortized bond premium 430,986 
Net pension liabiJily 386.820 

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,000.121 

Total liabilities 6,322.801 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 64.358 

NET POSITION 
Investment in general fixed assets, 

net of related debt 5,742,405 
Restricted for debt service/customer deposits 63,330 
Unrestricted 341,117 

Total net position S 6.146.852 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statemenr of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Fund Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services -

Gas sales 
Water sales 
Sewer service charges 
Penalties and late fees 

Miscellaneous revenues 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

"Nonoperaling revenues (expenses): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Revenue bond issuance costs 
Nonemployer pension contributions 

Total nonoperaling revenues (expenses) 

Income before contributions and transfers 

Operating contributions and transfers: 
Capital contributions 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total operating contributions and transfers 

Change in nei position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

Uillty Fund 

78,535 
L453.787 

8SJ30 
39,749 
55,303 

1,712,504 

32,028 
1.006,689 

366,968 
1.405.685 

306.819 

897 
(223,248) 
(163,205) 

11.871 
(373,685) 

(66.866) 

43.830 
25,999 

(80,296) 
(10.467) 

(77,333) 

6.224.185 

$ 6.146,852 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financiai statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Uttlitv Fund 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers £ l,6S5>90l 
Payments to suppliers (480,473) 
Payments to employees (545,636) 
Other receipts 52,303 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 712.095 

Cash flows from noncapital ftnancing activities: 
Cash received from other funds 25,999 
Nonemployer pension contributions il ,871 
Cash paid to other funds (80,296) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (42,426) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Principal paid on debt (5,713,465) 
Acquisition of debt 5,365,000 
Interest paid on debt (215,098) 
Revenue bond issuance costs (163,205) 
Revenue bond insurance (29,240) 
Revenue bond premium 430,986 
Proceeds from meter deposits (net) 3,828 
Contributed capital 43,830 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (116,995) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (394,359) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 897 

Net cash provided by investing activities 897 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 276,207 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 816.935 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1,093,142 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
14 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOLJISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds (continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Utilitv Fund 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash used by operating activities; 

Operating income $ 306,819 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities; 

Depreciation 366,968 
Changes in current assets and liabilities; 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 15,896 
(Increase) decrease in unbilled receivables 5,858 
(Increase) decrease in other receivables (156) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance (6,274) 
(Increase) decrease in due from others 4,102 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 69,169 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 323 
Increase (decrease) in coiripensated absences (5,309) 
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (45,301) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 712,095 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash flows 
to the statement of net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period -
Cash - unrestricted S 398.110 
Cash - restricted 418,825 

Total cash and cash equivalents 816,935 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period -
Cash - unrestricted 1,029,812 
Cash - restricted 63.330 

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,093,142 

Net increase (decrease) S 276.207 

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities 

In 2021, Town of Leotiville had $6,136 of bond premium amortized wilhin interest expense, This 
amount is included within the principal paid on water & sewer revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2021. 

In 2021, Town ofLeonville had $222 of bond insumace amortized within interest expense. This 
amount is included within the principal paid on water & sewer revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2021, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

(1) Summary of Siemficant Accounlina Policies 

The accounting and reporting practices of the Town of Leonville conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles of the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. GAAP includes 
all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Such accounting and 
reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the 
industry audit guide» Audits of State and Local Governmental Units, published by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. 

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies: 

A, Financial reporting Entity 

The Town of Leonville was incorporated under the provisions of the Lawrason Act. The 
Town operates under the Mayor-Board of Alderman form of government. The Board consists of 
five elected members. The Mayor and Board are compensated for their services at an amount 
legally set by the Board annually. 

This report includes all funds which are controlled by or dependent on the town executive 
and legislaiive branches (the Mayor and Board of Alderman). Control by or dependence on the 
Town was determined on the basis of financial accountability, budget adoption, taxing authority, 
authority to issue debt, election or appointment of governing body, and other general oversight 
responsibility. The town has no component units or fiduciary funds. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the 
Town of Leonville, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting 
entity. The statements distinguish between govemmental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and 
other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees 
charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's 
govemmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program 
or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues 
include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs, and (b) requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as 
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Town of Leonville are organized on the basis of funds each of which 
is considered a separate accounting entity. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal 
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain 
government functions or activities. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabiltties, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures, or expenses as appropriate. 

16 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon die 
purposes for which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped in the 
financial statements in this report, into four generic fund types and two broad fund categories. The 
emphasis on fijnd financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise ^nds, each 
displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of 
the Town or meets the foiiowing criteria; 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenduures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fiind are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for 
all funds of that category or type; and 

b, Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for 
all governmental and enterprise funds combined 

The major funds of the Town are described below: 

Governmental Fund-

Generai Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Proprietary Fund 

Enterprise Fund 

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body js that 
The costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purposes. The Town of Leonville's enterprise fund is the utility fund. It 
accounts for the provision of water, gas, and sewer services to residents of Che Town. 

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is term used to describe "wliich" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and (he statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

17 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurenteni focus or 
the "economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. Tlte proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The 
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating 
income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash 
flows. All assets and liabilities (whetlier current or noncurrent) associated with 
their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when Che liability is incurred, or economic asset used. 

Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange­
like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are 
recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Ad valorem taxes 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are billed, Fees and non-tax revenues are 
recognized when received, Grants from other governments are recognized when qualifying 
expenditures are Incurred. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay current liabilities, usually 60 days. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, grant revenues and interest 
revenue. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's 
policy to use restricted resources frst, then unrestricied resources as they are needed. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modifed accrual basis of accounting 
when the related fund liability is incurred except that accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay 
are not accrued and principal and interest on general long-term debt are recognized when due. 
Purchases of various operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased. 

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby 
revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Bad debts are written off when accounts became worthless. 

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as other 
financing sources (uses), Tliese transactions are recorded when the transfers occur. 
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Program revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from the 
program itself or from parties outside the Town's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program 
revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the Town's general revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The Town reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other 
functions are not allocated to tliose functions, but are reported separately in the Statement of 
Activities. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct 
expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and 
is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the 
applicable govemmentat or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
stalemenis. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are stated at their estimated fair value on the 
date donated. Estimated amounts are immaterial in relation to total fixed assets. The town 
maintains a threshold level of $ 1000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives arc not capitalized. Prior to July 1, 2001, governmental funds' 
infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have been valued at estimated historical 
cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. 
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of 
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Equipment 5 years 
Utility system and improvements 20-40 years 
Infrastructure 20 years 

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing tlie budgetary data reflected in these 
financial statements: 

1. The Mayor prepares a proposed, detailed line item, budget and submits it to the Board of 
Aldermen no later than 30 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. Revenues are budgeted 
by source. Expenditures are budgeted by departrnent and class. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified iJiat the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the 
call for the hearing. 
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4. After tlie holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize 
and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Any budgetary revisions require the approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of eacli fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles of the United States of America. Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended from time to time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended 
prior to the fiscal year and June 30,2021. 

F. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other 
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the 
applicable appropriation, is not employed by the Town as an extension of formal budgetary 
integration in the funds. 

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposit, interest - bearing demand, and time deposits. 
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities 
of 90 days or less when purchased. Under state law, the municipality may deposit funds in 
demand deposits, interest - bearing demand deposiLs, or time deposits with state banks organized 
under Louisiana law or any other slate of the United Stales, or under the laws of the United States. 

H. Interest-bearing Deposits 

Interest-bearing deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. 

]. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Fund considers all highly 
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three tnonths or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

J. Short Term InterPund Receivables / Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due 
from other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet. Short-teim interfund loans are 
classified as interfund receivabies/payabics. Any residual balances outstanding between the 
govemmenial activities and business-type activities are reponed in the government-wide financial 
Statements as^lntemal balances." 

K. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2021, 
are recorded as prepaid items. 
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L. Vacation and Sick Leave 

Vacation and sick leave are recorded as e>tpenditures of the period in which 
paid. The vacation policy was amended by ordinance '^1-2019. Annual vacation is granted on 
January I" of each year, ranging from one to five weeks, according to a years of service schedule. 
Any vacation hours, limited to 40, that are not used by December 31" of the year may be carried 
forward to the following year but must be taken by February 28''' or the hours are lost. Unused 
vacation is payable at tirne of termination of empioyment. Compensated absences payable has 
been accrued for the unused vacation as of June 30, 2021. 

Sick leave of 80 hours is granted on January I" of each year to full time employees, 
Although sick leave Is available for employees when needed, it does not vest nor is it payable at 
lermination of employment. Therefore, no liability has been recorded in the financial statements at 
June 30,2021. 

M. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary fund that 
are legally restricted as to their use, The restricted assets are related to the revenue bond accounts 
and utility meter deposits. At June 30, 2021, there was $28,325 restricted for debt service and 
$35,005 for utility meter deposits. 

N. Long-term Debt 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether tl^e assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
goveminent-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is 
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily 
of the revenue bonds payable and utility meter deposits payable and Net Pension Liability. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities it:i the fund fmancia! 
statements, The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal 
and interest reported as expenditures, Bond premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of 
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as incurred. The Town 
incurred bond issuance costs in the amount of $163,205 during the year and is accounted for as an 
expense in the Utility Fund. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the same in the 
fund stalements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

0. Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in 
three components: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
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b. Restricted net position - Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either 
by (0 external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling fegislatiori, 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amount for five 
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. 
The nonspendable fund balance classificaticri includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained iniacl. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications: 
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. 

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources 
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) Imposed by law through constilutlonal provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant 
to constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the town council - the govemment's 
highest level of decision rnaking authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the town council removes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
imposing the commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent 
that existing resources in the (lind have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those 
contractual requirements. 

Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the 
town's "intent" to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The 
town council and town manager have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that 
are reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as 
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed. 

Unassianed fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General 
Fund. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, 
the Town considers the amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned 
funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Town has provided otherwise in its 
commitment or assignment actions. 

P. Revenues. Expenditures, and Expenses 

Operating (Nonoperafing) Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and 
expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 
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Expenditures/Expenses 

In the govemment-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows: 

Governmental Funds - By Character: 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. 
Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permaneni reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified 
as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

Q. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

All receivables that hlstoricaliy experience uncollectibie accounts are shown net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. TTie Town bases its allowance on prior experience and the 
amount trade receivables exceed meter deposits. 

R. Revenue Restrictions 

The Town has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local 
requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include: 

Revenue Source Legal Restriction of Use 
Utility Fund Revenue Debt Service and Utility Operations 

S. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In some instances, the GASB requires a government to delay recognition of decreases in 
net position as expenditures until a future period. In other mstances, governments are required to 
delay recognition of increases in net position as revenues until a future period. In these 
circumstances, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources result from the 
delayed recognition of expenditures or revenues, respectively. Deferred outflows of resources 
include a deferred charge on debt refunding, A deferred charge on refunding results from the 
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred 
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 

U. Subsequent Events 

FASB issued SFAS No 165, Subsequent Events (ASC 855) establishes general standards 
for accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before 
financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. We have evaluated events subsequent 
Co the balance sheet through the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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(2) Deposils with Financial Institutions 

TKe cash and cash equivalents of the Town are subject to the following risk: 

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk, for deposits, is the risk thai, in the event of the failure of a 
depository finartcial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits. Under state law, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These 
securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on 
the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Town 
that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, Louisiana Revised 
Statute 39: J224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be held in the Town's name, 

follows 
At June 30, 2021, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $1,198,037 as 

Demand deposits 
Other 

Total 

$ L198,037 

S 1,198,037 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Deposit balances (bank balances) at 
June 30,2021, are secured as follows: 

Washington State Bank 
Interest Interest Non Interest 
Bearing Bearing Bearinp 

Bank balances $ 16,144 $1,075,045 $ 97,415 

Federal deposit insurance $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 250,000 
Pledged securities (Category 3) . S54.29I -

Total 250,000 1,104,291 250,000 

Excess/(Shonage) $ 233,856 $ 29,246 % 152,585 

Pledged securities in Category 3 include uninsured or unregistered investments for which the 
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Town's name. 
Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) Louisiana Revised Statue 
39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities 
within 10 days of being notified by the Town that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon 
demand. 

(3) Restricted Assets 

Restricted Assets were applicable to the following at June 30,2021. 
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Proprietary Fund: 
Utility Fund 
Meter Deposits 
Debt Service Fund 

Total Restricted Assets 

35,005 
28,325 
63.330 

(4) Capita] Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

Depreciation expense was charged to govemmsntal activities as follows: 

General governmental 
Police 
Streets 

Total depreciation expense 

5,589 
9,535 

79,782 

Balance Balance 

July I. 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021 

Govcrnmenial activiiies: 

Capilai assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 8,912 S S $ 8,912 

Other capital assets: 
Buildings 194,853 4,969 - 199.822 

Infrascruciure 2,006.36! 6,000 - 2,012.361 

Equipment 142,004 • • 142,004 

Totals 2,352,130 10,969 - 2,363,099 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings 136,513 5.589 - 142,102 

1 nfrastructure 360,552 79.782 - 440,334 

Equipment 113,434 9.535 - 122,969 

Total accumulated depreciation 610.499 94,906 - 705.405 

Governmenial aciivliics, capital assets, net $ 1,741,631 $ (83,937) $ S 1,657,694 

Business-type aetiviiics: 

Capital assets not being depreciated; 

Land $ 74,860 $ $ $ 74,860 

Construction in progress - - - -
Other capital assets: 

Utility system and extensions 16,352.569 83.317 • 16,435,886 

Machinery and equipment 530,164 33,678 563,842 

Totals 16,957,593 116,995 - 17,074.588 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Utility system andcxicnsions 5.169,319 345,880 - 5,515,199 

Machinery and equipment 465,896 21.088 - 486,984 

Total aeeuinutaied dcpreciaiior} 5,635,213 366,968 - 6,002,183 

Business type act ivicics, capital assets, net $ 11,322,378 S (249,973) s $ 1 {.072.405 

$ 94,906 
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Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows; 

Gas $ 

Water 
Sewer 

16,462 
205,608 
144,898 

Total depreciation expense $ 366,968 

(5) Changes in Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of debt transactions in the proprietary fund of the Town of Leonville, 

Louisiana for the year ended June 30, 2021; 

Payable at 

July 1,2020 Additions Retirements 

Payable at 

June 30, 2021 

Revenue bonds payable $ 888,941 $ $ (888,941) $ 
Notes payable 4,789,524 - (4,789,524) -
Water & sewer revenue refunding 

bonds, series 2021 - 5,365,000 (35,0001 5,330,000 
$ 5,678,465 $ 5.365,000 $ (5,713,465) S 5,330,000 

Add: Unamortized premiumon bond issue 

Total reported on statement ofnet position 

430,986 

$ 5,760,986 

Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2021 is comprised ofthe following individual issues: 

$1,104,000 Sewer Revenue Bond Payable dated 01/05/01; due in monthly 

installments of$5,0l2.16, which includes interest at 4.5% per annum, 

maturing on 01/05/41, secured by sewer revenues. This bond was refunded 

with proceeds ofthe Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 $ 

$116,000 Sewer Revenue Bond Payable dated 01/05/01; due in monthly 

installments of$526.64, which includes interest ar4.5% per annum, 

maturing on 01/05/41, secured by sewer revenues. This bond was refunded 

with proceeds of the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

$5,365,000 par value, Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, 

with an issuance date of April 28,2021. Amount due in annual payments on June 1st 

ofeach year with interest payments due on June Isl and December 1st ofeach year, 

with a coupon rate or3%. Bonds were sold at a premium of $437,122 resulting in an 

effective rale of 2.325%, The payment of principal or interest on the Bonds will not be 

guaranteed, in whole or in part, by tlie United States, or any agency or instrumentality 

thereof. The Town has purchased a municipal bond insurance policy in the amount of 

$29,462 which is amortized over the life ofthe Bonds. 

Total Revenue Bonds Payable 

Less Current Portion 

Revenue Bonds Payable 

5,330,000 

5,330,000 

180,000 

$ 5,150,000 
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Notes payable at June 30,2021 is comprised ofthe following individual issues: 

$4,839,000 WaterNotes Payable dated 10/16/14; due in monthly 
installments of $21,582, which includes interest at 4,375% per annum, maturing on 
10/16/54, secured by a lien offirst priority and water revenues. This note was refunded 
with proceeds ofthe Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

$260,000 WaterNotes Payable dated 10/16/14; due in mojithiy 
installments of $871, which includes initerest at 2.5% per annum, maturing on 
10/16/54, secured by a lien offirst priorKy and water revenues. This note was refunded 
with proceeds ofthe Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Total Notes Payable 

Less Current Portion 

Notes Payable 

Sewer and Water Debt Reserve Requirements 

The debt reserve requirements are no ionger required on the refunded notes and bonds. The 
amounts that were previously restricted have been reclassified to non-restricted cash balances as of April 
28, 2021, the date of the refunding. 

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds. Series 2021 

AH payments of principal of and interest in the Bonds are to be made from a debt service fund 
established by the Town, the "Bond Fund". The Bond Fund serves as a debt service fund for the payment 
of principal and interest on the bonds. Amounts deposited into the bond Fund which are required to pay a 
portion of the next maturing principal of and next due interest on the Bonds are expected to be deposited 
monthly (but not more than one (1) year prior to such payment). All such amounts together with investment 
income thereon will be used to pay such principal and interest within thirteen (13) months from the date of 
receipt. The balance in the Bond Fund at year end amounted to $28,325 and followed the Bond instrument. 

The annual requirements to amortize all Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 
are as follows: 

Year Ending Principal 

June 30, Total Payments 

2022 339,900 180,000 

2023 339,500 185,000 
2024 338.950 190,000 

2025 338,250 195,000 
2026 342,400 205,000 

2027-2031 1,701.600 1,110,000 
2032-2036 1,695,200 1,280,000 

2037^2041 1,671.200 1,460,000 
2042-2043 548,700 525,000 

$ 7,315,700 $ 5,330,000 

Interest 
Payments 

159,900 
154,500 
[48,950 
143,250 
137,400 
591,600 
415,200 
211,200 

23,700 
1,985,700 
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Interest expense totaled 5223,248 and is included in business type activities as an expense. 
Interest expense lias been reduced by bond premium amortization of56,i36 for the year. 

(6) Utility Customer Deposits 

The accounts of the Town include a liability for utility customer deposits of $32,315. As of June 
30, 2021, the Town has a meter deposit account with a balance of $35,005 specifically set aside for 
customer meter deposits. 

(7) Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions 

In addition to the federal social security system, substantially all employees of the Town of 
Leonville are members of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by separate boards of trustees. Article 10, Section 29 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to Che state legislature. Tlie systems issue 
annual, publicly-available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the systems. The report for MERS may be obtained at www.mersla.com and 
www.5ampers.org, respectively. 

Plan Description- MERS 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) was originally established 
by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the Stale of Louisiana to provide retirement 
benefits to employees of all incorporated villages, towns, and cities within the stale, which did not have 
their own retirement system and which elected to become members of the System. 

The System is administered by a Board of Trustees composed of eleven members, three of whom 
shall be active and contributing members of the System with at least ten years creditable service and who 
are elected to office in accordance with the Louisiana Election Code, three of whom shall be active and 
contributing members of the System with at least ten years creditable service and who are not elected 
offjciafs; one of whom shall be president of the Louisiana Municipal Association who shall serve as an ex-
officio member during his tenure; one of whom shall be the Chairman of the Senate Retirement Committee; 
and one of whom shall be the Chairman of the House Retirement Committee of the Legislature of 
Louisiana; the commissioner of administration, who shall be a nonvoting member; and the State Treasurer, 
who shall be a nonvoting member. 

The System is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
The System was established and provided for by R.S, I 1:1731 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS). 

Act ^#569 of the year 1968 established by the Legislature of the State of Louisiana provides an 
optional method for municipalities to cancel Social Security and come under supplementary benefits in (he 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, effective on and after June 30, 1970. 

Effective October 1, 1978, under Act UIZS, the "regular plan" and the "supplemental plan" were 
replaced, and are now known as Plan "A" and Plan "B". Plan A combines the original plan and the 
supplemental plan for those mun icipalities panicipaiing in both plans, while Plan B participates in only the 
original plan. 
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Eligibility Reouirements: 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if llie 
employee is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuais paid 
jointly by a participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in the System with 
exceptions as outlined in the statues. 

Any Person eligible for membership whose first employment making him eligible for membership 
In the System occurred on or after January 1,2013 shall become a member of the MERS Plan A Tier 2 or 
MERS Plan B Tier 2 of the System as a condition of employment. 

Benefits Provided: 

Retirement Benefits- MERS 

Any member of Plan B who commenced participation in the System prior to January 1, 
2013 can retire providing they meet one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (ID) or more years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with ten (10) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) years of creditable service at death of member. 

Generally, the montJiiy amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan 8 shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average final compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly 
earnings during the highest sixty consecutive months, or Joined months if service was interrupted. 
However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified 
amounts. 

Any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if they meet one of the 
following requirements: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (3D) years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military service 

and unused annual sick leave. 

The monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during 
the higliest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under 
certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Final compensation is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or Joined 
months that produce the highest average for a member whose first employment made him or her 
eligible for membership in the system on or before June 30, 2006. Final compensation is the 
employee's average salary over the 60 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average 
for a member whose first employment made him or her eligible for membership in the system after 
June 30. 2006. Employees wlio terminate with at least the amount of creditable service slated above, 
and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive 
the benefit accrued to their date of termination. 
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Deferred Retirement Options 

In lieu of temninating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any 
member of MERS who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. A MERS member may 
participate in DROP only once. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable 
but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the 
person elected to cease employment, are credited to the MERS member's individual DROP account. 
Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Upon termination of 
employment prior to or at the end of the participation period, the member may receive a lump sum 
from the account, or a true annuity based on the account balance. Jf employment is not terminated at 
the end of the three year DROP participation period, payments into the DROP account cease and the 
person resumes active contributing membership in MERS. 

Disability Benefits 

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she 
has at least 10 years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement and has been officially 
certified as disabled by iJie Stale Medical Disability Board. The monthly maximum retirement 
benefit under Plan B of MERS is the lesser of an amount equal to two percent of member's final 
compensation multiplied by years of service (not less than 30% of member's final compensation) or 
an amount equal to what the member's normal retirement benefit would be based on final 
compensation at lime of disability, but assuming continuous service until member's earliest normal 
retirement age. 

Survivor's Benefit 

The surviving spouse (defined as someone married to the deceased member for at least 12 
months immediately preceding the member's death) of a MERS Plan B member (not eligible for 
retirement at the time of death) will receive a survivor benefit, provided that the member had 5 or 
more years of creditable service. The surviving spouse will be paid either a monthly benefit equal to 
30% of member's final compensation, payable when surviving spouse attains the age of 60 or 
becomes disabled, or a monthly benefit equal to actuarial equivalent of the benefit described 
previously (not less than 15% of member's final compensation), payable upon the death of the 
member. A MERS Plan B member who is eligible for normal retirement at the time of death will be 
deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse upon the date 
of death. Benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of any other survivor 
benefits. 

Cost of Living Increases 

MERS is authorized under state law to grant an annual cost of living adjustment to members 
who have been retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original 
benefit and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available. The cost of living increase must be 
paid from investment income in excess of normal requirements. 

Conrributions: 

The MERS employer contribution rates are established annually under La R.S 11:101-
11:104 by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), taking into consideration 
the recommendation of the system's actuary. For the year ending June 30, 2021 the employer 
contribution rate for MERS Plan B was 15.5%. Employer contributions to MERS was $52,1 16, for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. Employees participating in MERS are required to contribute 5.00%. 
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Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are 
not in a special funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. MERS 
receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. The Town of Leonville recognizes 
revenue in an amount equal to its proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan 
from these non-employer contributing entities. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town of 
Leonville recognized revenue as a result of support received from non-employer contributing entities 
of$l2.764 for its participation in MERS. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 

At June 30, 2021^ the Town of Leonville reported a liability for MERS of $415,935. for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 
30, 2020, and the total pension liabilities used to calculate the net pension liability were determined by 
actuarial valuations as of that dale. The Town of Leonville's proportion of the net pension liability for 
the retirement system was based on a projection of the Town of Leonville's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the Town of Leonville's proportion for MERS was 
0.458975Vo. Tltis reflects a decrease for MERS 0.0537985% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2019. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town of Leonville recognized pension expense, for 
which there were no forfeitures, as follows: 

MEE^ 
Pension Expense 
$ 44,125 

Net Pension Liability 
$ 415,935 

At June 30, 2020, the Town of Leonville reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 

Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

12,890 

45,156 

52,116 

Deferred Inflows 
ofResources 

S (6,997) 

(62,205) 

110,162 $ (69,202) 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, employer contributions totaling S52,116 were made 
subsequent to the measurement date for MERS. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30: 
202! 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Total 

MERS 
$ (22,315) 

(18,012) 

10,288 

6.014 

$ (24,025) 

Accuarial Assumptions 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit 
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is 
attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position. 

follows: 
The components of the net pension liabilUy of MERS employers as of June 30, 2021 are as 

Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Total Net Pension Uabiiity 

Plan Fidiciary Net Postion % of Total Pension Liability 

2020 
MERS Plan B 

66.14% 

202J 
MERS Plan B 

$ 1,516,425 $ 1,232,791 
(1,008,424) (816,856) 

S 508,001 $ 415,935 

66.26% 

The Town of Leonville's allocation is 0.458975% of the Total Net Pension Liability for MERS. 

The total pension liabilities for MERS in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

MERS 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 

E-qjecled remaining service lives 3 years for Flan B 

Investment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Projected salary increases 
1 to 4 years of service 
more than 4 years of service 

Annuitant and 
beneficiary mortality 

6.950%, net of investment expense 

2.500% 

7.40% 

4.90% 

PubG-20IO(B) Healthy Retiree Table set equal Co 
120% for males and females, each adjusted using 
their respective male and female MP2018 scales. 
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Employee mortality PubG-2010(B) Employee Tabic set equal to 
120% for males and fenrales, each adjusted using 
their respective male and female MP20I8 scales. 

Disabled lives mortality PubNS-20l0(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal 
to 120% for males and females with the full 
generational MP2018 scale. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best- estimates rartges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return for 
MERS is 6,950% for Che year ended June 30, 2020. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target 
asset allocation for MERS as of June 30,2020 are summarised in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Target Allocations Real Rate of Return 
Equity 53% 2.33% 
Fixed Income 38% 1.67% 
Alternatives 9% 0.40% 

Total 100% 4.40% 
Inflation 2.60% 
Expected Nominal Return 7.00% 

Discount Rates 

The discount rate used to measure tlie total pension liability for MERS was 6.950%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be 
made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PERSAC taking into consideration the 
recommendation of the actuary. Based on those assumptions, the net position of MERS was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivitv of the Empiover's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes In the Discount 
Rates 

The following table presents the Town of Leonville's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability using the discount rate of 6.950% for MERS, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one perceniage-polnt lower 
(5.950% for MERS) or one percentage-point higher (7,950% for MERS) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rale increase 

MERS $ 553,687 $ 415,935 $ 299,378 
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Changes in Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2020 were recognized in the 
current reporting period except as follows: 

Dijferences between Expected and Actual Experience: 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension benefit using (he 
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining 
service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference 
between expected and actual experience resulted in a deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2020 in 
the amount of S6,997. 

Dijferences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments 
were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed ftve-year 
period. The difference between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred outflow of 
resources as of June 30, 2020 in the amount of $45,156. 

Changes in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since tlie prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees (hat are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions - Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share 
are recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with 
a pension through the pension plan. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Svslem 

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System Is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed 
by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 
The System provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments 
in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and 
inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal 
agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date, 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:221111:2233. 
The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statures for more complete information. 
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Membership Prior to January 1,2013 

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 25 
years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years 
creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of 
the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number 
of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range 
from forty to sixty percent of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In 
addition, each child, under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the tneinber's average final 
compensation or S200.00 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1.2013 

Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits are 
based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a 
member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of tlie System and has 25 years of 
creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous Duty 
sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of (he System and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable 
service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a 
member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit 
from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and 
two and a half percent, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of 
creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range 
from twenty-five to fifty-five percent of die member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. 
In addition, each child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per 
month whichever is greater. If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiar)' will receive 
a refund of employee contributions only. 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on 
the amount of the current regular retirement, disabilit)', beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% 
in any given year. Tlie Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's 
original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or 
older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cosi-pf-iivipg adjustment 
until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when 
authorized, shall not be effective unti i the lapse of at least one-iialf of the fiscal year. 
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Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they 
reach regular retirement age. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

A member is eligible to elect to enter Che deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is 
eligible for regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for 
the program, the employee's active membership in the System is tenninated. At the entry dale into the 
DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP 
account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant at date of 
application. The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. IF eiriptoyment is 
terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a 
true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall resume 
and upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional service. 
For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to 
the termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of 
return of the System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose 
money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to 
earn interest based on the System's investment portfolio return or a money market investment return, This 
could result in a negative earnings rale being applied to the accouni. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a 
government money market account. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial Benefit Option 
program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have not 
participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment of 
up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. 
Interest is computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. 

Funding Policy ~ State statute requires covered employees to contribute 10 00 percent of their 
salaries to the system. The Town is required to contribute 32.25 percent of covered employees' salaries. As 
provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial 
valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the evaluation for the prior fiscal year. 

The Town's contributions to the System for the year ended June 30, 2021 was SI 8,471, equal to 
the required contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing 
to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809-7017, or by calling (225)929-7411. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a liability of S210,782 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the MPERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date. The Town's proportion of tlie net pension liabjiity was based on a projection of the Town's 
long-term share of contributions to the MPERS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
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participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the Town's proportion was 0.022752%, 
which was a decrease of 0.001633% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019. 

For the year ended June 30,2021, the Town recognized pension expense of SI 6,871. 

Non-emplover contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. 
The tax is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. T]ie Town recognized 
$4,959 of non-employer contributioa revenue. 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related 10 pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 

Changes In assumptions 
Net difference between projected 

and aclualeamings on pension 
plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
ofResources 

4,997 

25,227 

915 

18.471 

Deferred Inflows 
ofResources 

$ (S,2S3) 
(5,189) 

(1,631) 

49,610 $ (15,103) 

Tlie Town reported a total of $18,471 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made Subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2020 which will be recognized as a 
reduction in net pension liability '\n the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as fotlows: 

Year Ended June 30: MPERS 
2021 $ (13,46!) 
2022 (3,365) 
2023 (10,096) 
2024 (4,428) 
Total $ (31,350) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The net pertsion liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit 
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed 
to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 
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The components of the net pension liability of the Town ais of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Tola! Collective Net Pension Liability 

Plan Fidiciary Net Postion % ofTotal Pension Liability 

2020 

70.86% 

2019 
S 723,735 $ 763.847 

(5)2.953) (542,390) 
S 210,782 S 221,457 

71.13% 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the assumptions 
used in the June 30, 2020 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the results of an actuarial 

experience study for the period July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2014, In cases where benefit structures were 
changed after the study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2020 are as follows; 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial cost rrethod 

Expected remaining 
service lives 

Investment rate ofretum 

Inflation rale 

Salary increases, 
including inflation and merit 

Mortality 

June 30.2020 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

2019 - 4 years 
2018-4 years 
2017-4 years 
2016 -4 years 

6.950%, net ofinvesirrent expense 

2.500% 

Years ofService 
1-2 

3-23 
Over 23 

Salary Growth Rate 
9.75% 
4.75% 
4.25% 

RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Slue Collar 
Adjustment SexDistinct Tables projected to 
2029 by Scale AA (set back I year for females) 
for healthy annuitants and beneficiaries. 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table set back 5 years 
for males and set back 3 years for females for 
disabled annuitants. 

RP-2000 Employee Table set back 4 years for 
males and 3 years for females for active member:; 
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Cost-of-Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes pi^viously gratited 
cost-of-living increases. The present values do 
not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Trustees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed by the 
prior actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014 and review of similar law 
enforcement mortality. The data was assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to 
produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the 
estimated duration of the System's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were 
compared to those produced by using a set-back of standard tables. The result of Che procedure indicated 
that the Tables used would produce liability values approximating The appropriate generational mortality 
tables. 

The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included 
in the System's target allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Temi Ejpected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation ofRetum 
Equity 48.50% 3.08% 
Fixsd Income 33.50% 0.54% 
Alternative 18.00% 1.02% 
Totals 100% 4.64% 

Inflation 2j5% 
E>q7ected Nominal Return 7.19% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.950%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members wil! be made at 
the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciaiy net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivitv to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using 
the discount rate of 6.950%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rale thai is one percentage point lower 5.950% or one percentage point higher 
7.950% Chan the current rate as of June 30, 2020. 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
5.95% 6.95% 7.95% 

Net Pension Liability $ 308,562 221.457 1 148,384 
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Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2020 were recognized in the 
current reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience: 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or 
demographic factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension expense 
using the slraight-iirse amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The 
difference between expected and actual experience resulted in deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 
2020 in the amount of S8,283. 

Differences between Projected and Actual In^/estrnenl Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments 
were recognized in pension expense using the siraight-lme amortization method, over a closed five-year 

period. The difference between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred inflow of 
resources as of June 30, 2020 in the amount of $0. 

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs: 

The changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors were recognized in 
pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of 
the expected remaining service lives of all employees thai are provided with pensions through the pension 
plan. The changes of assumptions or other inputs resulted in deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources as of June 30, 2020 in the amounts of 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

2017 $ 16.720 $ 
2018 13,344 
2019 12,410 
2020 4.997 5,189 

Change in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of Uie coliecttve net pension liability and 
collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement 
date were recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method 
over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions - Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight line amortization method over a closed period 
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a 
pension through the petision plan. 
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(8) CotTtpensation of Town Officials 

A detail of compensation paid to the mayor and Board of Alderman for the year ended June 30, 
2021, follows: 

Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor 12,000 
Kerry Willingham 3,600 
Brandon C Flerpin 3,600 
KirkSteily 3,6C0 
Bemita Kennerson 3,600 
Billy Landos 3,600 

(9) Federally Assisted Funds 

The Town pajlicipated In federally assisted programs. These programs are audited in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards. 

(10) Concentration of Risks 

Concentration of risks with respect Co the Town is subject to the conditions of the limited 
geographical area of the town. 

(11) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statemencsand the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

(12) Interfund Activities 

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2021, consist of the following: 

From the Utility Fund to the General Fund for operations $ 80,296 

Total $ 80,296 

In general, transfers are used to (!) rnove revenues from the fund that collects the money to the 
fund that expends the money, (2) move receipts restricted or earmarked for debt sej.*vices from the funds 
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use 
unrestricted revenues collected in a fund to provide operating advances to other funds in accordance with 
budgetary authorizations. 

(13) Recentlv Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements which 
will become effective in futures years as shown below: 

Statement No. 87, "Leases" increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by 
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
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TOWN OF LEONVJLLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes ro Financial Slatemeius (Cent itiued} 

principle thai leases are financings of the righl to use an underlying asset. Under this Staiement, a lessee is 
required lo recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of infomnaiion about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for fiscal year 2021. Earlier application is encouraged. Management has not yet determined the 
effect of ihis Statement on the financial statements. 

(14) Qn-Behalf Payments 

The Town received on-behalf payments from the State of Louisiana, in the amount of SI 2,000. In 
the form of police supplemental pay. 

(15) Evaluation of Subsequent Events 

The Town has evaluated subsequent events through December 14. 2021, the dale which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Budget 
Variance — 
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Licenses and permits 

Franchise fees 

Fines and forfeits 

intergovemmentai 

Miscellaneous 

$ 2S,800 

67,500 

33,000 

45,150 

2,430 

S 29,167 : 

70,651 

23,500 

94,742 

4,04) 

S 31,349 

71,019 

22,607 

91,457 

4,042 

$ 2,182 

368 

(893) 

(3,285) 

1 

Total revenues 176,880 222.10) 220,474 (1,627) 

Expenditures: 

Current — 

General government 

Public safety: 

Police 

Streets and drainage 

Capital outlay 

66,227 

155,800 

11,200 

66,474 

159,687 

25,649 

21,344 

64,553 

159,889 

26,025 

10,969 

1,921 

(202) 

(376) 

10,375 

Total expenditures 233,227 273,154 261,436 11,718 

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over 

expenditures (56,347) (51,053) (40,962) 10,091 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Operating transfers in 

Operating transfers out 

78,000 80,296 80,296 -

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 78,000 80,296 80.296 

E:a:ess (deficiency) of 

revenues and other 

sources over expenditures 

and other uses 21,653 29,243 39,334 10,09) 

Fund balances, beginning 86,596 86,596 86,596 

Fund balances, ending S 108,249 S 115,839 < E 125,930 S 10,091 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Revenues 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Budget 
Variance -
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

Licenses and permits $ 2S,800 S 29,167 $ 31,349 $ 2,182 

Franchise fees G7.500 70,651 71,019 368 

Fines and forfeits 33,000 23,500 22,607 (893) 

Intergovernmental: 
State ofLouisiana -
Beer tax 1,650 1.884 l,79S (86) 
Casino tax. 22.000 28,404 27,994 (410) 
On behalf payments 12,000 12,000 12,000 -

ijrant revenue •5,000 36,280 33,491 (2,789) 
Local Goverments -
Payments in lieu oftaxes 2,100 2,139 2,139 -
St. Landry Parish Solid Waste - n,485 11,485 -
Sewer District #1 2,400 2,550 2,550 -

Total intergovemrrKntal 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

45,150 94,742 91,457 (3,285) Total intergovemrrKntal 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

2.430 4,041 4,042 1 

Total intergovemrrKntal 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues $ 176,880 $ 222,10.1 S 220,474 $ (1,627) 

See Notes to Required Suppiemenlaiy Information. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Expendilures 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Budget 
Variance -
Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

General government: 

Salaries S 31,835 $ 31,848 $ 31,849 S (1) 

Payroll taxes 2,700 2,870 2.547 323 

Retirement and employee benefits 

52 50 57 (7) 

Accounting 2,600 4,735 4,750 (15) 

Advertising 150 - - -

Due and subscriptions 450 331 331 -

Utilities 2.500 2,504 2,658 (154) 

Insurance 12,300 14,802 12,321 2,481 

Supplies 3,100 2,384 2,449 (65) 

Telephone 3,440 3,495 3,208 287 

Miscellaneous 7,100 3,455 4.3S3 (928) 

Total general government 66,227 66,474 64,553 1,921 

Public safety: 

Police department -

Salaries 107,500 107,227 103.193 4,034 

Payroll ta>«s 5,200 3,862 4,245 (383) 

Retirement and employee 22,000 22,190 21,715 475 

Automobile ejq^ense 1,400 12,281 13,788 CU507) 

Supplies 1,200 69 77? (708) 

Uniforms 1,000 298 321 (23) 

Insurance 14,500 11,463 13,573 (2,110) 

Miscellaneous 3,000 2,297 2,277 20 

Total police department 155,800 159,687 159,889 (202) 

Streets and drainage: 

Street materials 200 13,886 14,202 (316) 

Street lighting 11.000 ) 1,763 11,833 (60) 

Miseellaneous . . - -

Total streets and drainage 11,200 25.649 26,025 (376) 

Capital outlay: 

Equipment & buildings - 21,344 10,969 10,375 

Total e>qjenditures $ 233,227 S 273.154 $ 261,436 S 11,718 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share ofNei Pension Liability 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Fiscal 

Year 

Employer 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 

Liability 

(Asset) 

Employer 

Proportionate 

Share ofthe 

Net Pension 

Liability 

(Asset) 

Employer's 

Covered 

Employee 

Payroll 

Employer's 

Proportionate 

Share ofthe 
Net Pension 

Liability 

(Asset) as a 

Percentage of 

It's Covered 

Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 

as a Percentage 

oftheTotal 

Pension Liability 

MERS 20)5 0.592369 $ 238,144 $ 490,736 48.52% 76.94% 

MERS 2016 0.619489 421,034 429,920 98.06% 68.71% 
MERS 2017 0.5S4307 484,337 449.248 107.81% 63.33% 
MERS 201S 0.605243 523,676 457,662 114.42% 63.49% 

MERS 2019 0.617622 522,404 443,912 117.68% 65.60% 
MERS 2020 0.580696 508,001 355,690 142.82% 66.14% 

MERS 2021 0.45S975 415.935 336,232 123.70% 66.14% 

MPERS 2015 0.03866 $ 378,115 $ 73,615 377.80% 75,10% 
MPERS 2016 0,038543 223,605 70.990 315.98% 70.73% 
MPERS 2017 0.025343 237,535 80,350 295.63% 66.04% 
MPERS 2018 0.026915 234,979 71,278 329.57% 70,08% 
MPERS 2019 0.024153 204,191 76,399 267.27% 71.88% 
MPERS 2020 0.024385 331,457 74,319 297.98% 71.13% 
MPERS 2021 0.023752 210,782 54,728 385.14% 70.86% 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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TOWN OFLEONVILLB, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer's Pension Contribution 

Year Ended June 30> 2021 

Contributions 
in Relation Employer's 

Contributions 
as a Percent 

Contractually to Contractual Contribution Covered of Covered 

Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Employee Employee 

Year Contribution Contribution (E>cess) Payroll Payroll 
M£RS 2015 S 46,620 $ 46,620 S $ 490,736 9.50% 

MERS 2016 40,782 40,782 - 429,290 9.50% 
; MERS 2017 49,417 49,417 - 449,248 11.00% 

MERS 2018 60,646 60,646 - 457,662 13.25% 
i MERS 2019 62,148 62,148 - 443,912 14.00% 

MERS 2020 49,796 49,796 - 355,690 14.00% 
MERS 2021 52,116 52,116 - 336,232 15.50% 

MPERS 2015 $ 23.816 $ 23,816 s $ 73.615 31.50% 
MPERS 2016 20,942 20,942 - 70,990 29.50% 
MPERS 2017 25,511 25,511 • 80,350 31.75% 

MPERS 2018 21,918 21,918 - 71,278 30.75% 
MPERS 2019 24,639 24,639 - 76,399 32.25% 

MPERS 2020 24,154 24,154 - 74.319 32,50% 
MPERS 2021 18.471 18,471 • 54,728 33.75% 

Tills schedule is intended to show Information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLT, LOUISIANA 
Notes CO Required Supplementary Infonnaiion 

Note 1. Legal Compliance - Budgets 

A. The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

1 .The Mayor prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Board of Aldermen no later than 30 
days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. Revenues are budgeted by source, Expenditures are 
budgeted by department and class. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified that the proposed budget is 
available for public inspection. At the same lime, a public hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the 
hearing. 

4. After the holding of tlte public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalise and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or function to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated 
require the approval of the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetaiy appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
of the United Stales of America. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended froTn time 
to time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended prior to the fiscal year and June 30, 2021. 

Note 2. Pension Plan - Changes of Assumptions 

Changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors or of other inputs were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal 
to The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with 
pensions through the pension plan. There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 
30, 2021. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Proprieiaiy Fund 

Schedule ofOperating E;q>enses 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Utility Fund 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries $ 407.0S6 

Payroll laws 31,152 

Retirement and enployee beneHts 57,1 n 

Gas purchases 32,028 

Chemicals 73.581 

Insurance 83,579 

Accounting and auditing 17,270 

Engineering fees 1,130 

Office supplies 6,968 

Computer expense 10,939 

Repairs and maintenance 130,592 

Auto expenses and travel 34,428 

Utilities 85,427 

Telephone 12,300 

Uniforms 7,504 

Miscellaneous 47,222 

Depreciation 366.968 

Total operating expenses S 1,405,685 
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VIQE, TUJAGUE ̂  NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

151 N STREET 
P 0. BOX 1006 

EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535 
SHIRLEY VICE, JR.. C.P.A TELEPHONE. 
FRANK G, TUJAGUE. C.PA 337-A57-9324 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL C PA FAX: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAITERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDmNG 
STANDARDS 

The Honorable Nicholas Degueyter. Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldennan 
Town ofLeonville, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards 
issued by Che Comptroller General of the United Stales, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Town of Leonville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Leonville, Louisiana's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December I A, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Leonville, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Leonville, 
Louisiana's interna) control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of 
Leonville, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in imernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materia} weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In intemal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by Chose charged with 
governance, 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
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deficiencfes in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, materia] weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify ceitain deficiencies in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item #2021-001, which is consider to be a 
significant deficiency. 

CompJiance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Leonville, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on-the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other 
matter that is required to be reported under Coveniment Auditing Standards and which is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items #2021-001. 

Town of Leonville, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Town of Leonville, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Town of Leonville, Louisiana's response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the seope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Vige, Tujague & Noel, CPA's 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 14, 2021 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

We have audited the financial statements of Town of Leonvihe as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2021. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our audit of the financial statements as of June 30, 2021, resulted in an 
unmodified opinion. 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Reports 

a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control 
Material Weaknesses Yes X No Significant Deficiencies X Yes 
Compliance 
Compliance Material to Financial Statement Yes X No 

b. Federal Awards 

None reported. 

Section 11. Financial Statement Findings 

#2021 -001 — Segregation of Accounting Functions 

No 

Condition: The Town of Leonville did not have adequate segregation of functions within the 
accounting system. 

Criteria: SAS109, Underslanding the Entity and its Environment and Assessing the Risks 
of Material Misstatement, AU314.43 defines internal control as follows: 

'Tnterna! Control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, 
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance 
about the achievement of objectives with regard to reliability of financial 
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) 
AT501,03 states: 

"An entity's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that pertain to an entity's ability to record, process, summarize, 

•. and report financial data consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual 
financial statements or interim financial statements, or both." 
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Cause: 

Effect; 

Recommendation: 

Response: 

TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

The cause of the condition is the fact tlmt the Town does not have a sufficient 
number of staff performing administrative and financial duties so as to provide 
adequate segregation of accounting and financial duties. 

Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions increases the 
risk that errors and/or irregularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur 
and not be prevented and/or detected. 

Due to the size of the operation and the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it 
may not be feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

It is not cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the 
accounting function. No corrective action is considered necessary. 

Section m. Summary of Other Audit Results 

I, The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion of the financial statements of Town of 
Leonville, Louisiana, 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Status of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30,2021 

#2020-001 - Seoreeation of Accounting Functions 

Condition: 

Criteria; 

Cause: 

Effect: 

The Town of Leonville did not have adequate segregation of functions within the 
accounting system. 

SAS109, Understanding the Entity and its Environment and rissessing the Risks 
of Material Misstatement, AU314.43 defines internal control as follows: 

"Internal Control is a process, affected by those cliarged with governance, 
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance 
about the achievement of objectives with regard to reliability of financial 
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) 
AT50j .03 states: 

"An entity's internal control over fnancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that pertain to an entity's ability to record, process, summarize, 
and report financial data consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual 
financial statements or interim financial statements, or both." 

The cause of the condition is the fact that the Town does not have a sufTicienl 
number of staff performing administrative and financial duties so as to provide 
adequate segregation of accounting and financial duties. 

Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions increases the 
risk that errors and/or irregularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur 
and not be prevented and/or delected. 

Recommendation: Due to the size of the operation and the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it 
may not be feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: It is not cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the 
accounting function. No corrective action is considered necessary. 

Status: This finding has been repeated. 

#2020-002 - Insufficient ColJateraiization of Deposits 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Bank account balances at June 30, 2020 exceeded FDIC Insurance and pledged 
securities from B1 Bank by $6,780. 

Under state law, bank deposit balances must be secured by federal deposit 
insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market 
value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all lime 
equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are 
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Cause: 

Effect: 

TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Status of Prior Audit Findings (continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank 
that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 
imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the 
pledged securities within 10 days of being notifies by the Town that the fiscal 
agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, Louisiana Revised 
Statute 39:1224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be 
held In the Town's name. 

The Bank monitors the account balances at the beginning of each month to 
determine when more security pledges are necessary. 

At June 30, 2020, the Town had interest bearing cash In bank in the amount of 
$865,201 and the insurance and security pledges of $858,42), resulting in a 
shortage of pledges in the amount of $6,780. 

Recommendation: We recommend thai the Town monitor the security pledges at the end of each 
month to ensure that they have adequate coverage. 

Response: Management understands this finding and agrees with the recommendation. 

Status: This finding has been cleared. 

#2020-003 - Sales Tax Reporting and Coliection - Gas Fund 

Condition: Sales tax calculation for taxable sales of Gas were incorrectly calculated at a rate 
of 3% when the rate should be 2% and sales tax reports were incorrectly 
prepared. 

Criteria: 

Cause; 

Effect: 

Recommendation: 

Response; 

Status: 

Sales taxes due to the State of Louisiana for the sale of gas for non-residential 
usage is taxed at a rate of 2% of sales. 

Sales tax rate was incori'ectly being charged at a rate of 3% on sales of gas for 
non-residential usage and sales tax reports were incorrectly prepared. 

Sales taxes of $62 were over collected on sales of non-residentiai gas sales for 
the year, however all of the sales taxes collected were remitted to the State of 
Louisiana. 

Sales tax rales should be review and checked to the stated rates charged by each 
taxing jurisdiction on a regular basis and sales tax repojls should be filed 
correctly on a monthly basis. 

Management agrees with and understands the finding and will implement 
procedures to verify tax rates and file the necessary reports correctly. 

This finding has been cleared. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Status of Prior Audit Findings (continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

#2020-004 - Sales Tax Collections - Water Fund Commercia] Accounts 

Condition; 

Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

The Town has two commercial trailer parks and three RV parks tiiat were not 
charged sales taxes on water sales. 

The State of Louisiana requires that commercial enterprises such as Trailer Parks 
and RV Parks, where the enterprise is billed and pays for the watei- usage, are 
subject to sales taxes on water purchases. 

The Town classified these accounts as sales of residential water. 

Sales taxes were not charged or remitted for these accounts. The calculated 
amount not collected or remitted for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 
amounted to $1,362 and the period of July 2020 through time of discovery 
amounted to $542. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the correct classification be applied to these accounts and 
sales taxes should-be collected and remitted to the State of Louisiana, Sales Tax 
Returns should be amended with remittance of the taxes due. 

Response: Management agrees with and understands the finding and will implement the 
correct classification to these accounts with collection and remittance of sales 
tax. 

Status: This finding has been cleared. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule ofMayorand Alderman 

Year Ended June 30, 202J 

Name 

Nicholas Degueyter 
P.O.Box442 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-7026 

Office and Term 

Mayor 
December 31, 2022 

Compensation 

12,000 

Kerry Willingliam 
P.O. Box 162 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-2287 

Alderman 
December 31. 2022 

3,600 

Brandon C. Herpin 
P.O. Box 375 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-9507 

Alderman 
December 31,2022 

3,600 

Kirk Slelly 
P.O. Box 573 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-2497 

Alderman 
December 31, 2022 

3,600 

Benita Kcnnerson 
P.O. Box354 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-3236 

Alderman 
December3l, 2022 

3,600 

Billy Lancios 
P.O. Box313 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-945-0586 

Alderman 
December 31.2022 

3,600 

30,000 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Sdiedule ofR^tes and Accounts Receivabk 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

The aging of accounts receivable for the Utility Fund includes the water systein, gas system and sewer system as of 
June 30,2021 is as follows: 

Amounts Receivable (Water. Gas and Sewer'^ 

Days Amounts 

Unbilled S 54,642 

0-30 $ 125,249 
31-60 3,216 
61-90 1,120 

Over-90 2.886 
$ 132.47] 

Residential Users -
Commercial Users -
Small Business Users -

Gas 
339 

18 

Water 
2,B36 

31 
112 

Sewer 
475 

As of July 1. 2020 lo current, the sewer rates were as follows (rate on actual water usage): 

Residential $10.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 1.50 per thousand or pan thereof over 2,000 gallons and under 10,000 gallons 

Commercial $10.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 1.50 per thousand or pan thereof over 2,000 gallons 

Low Pressure Grinder Pump Rates $9.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$) .50 per thousand or part thereof over 2,000 gallons 

Customers with no water meters will be billed using current rates based on 7,000 gallons 

Customers with more than one sewer service and only one water meter shall be billed at tlic following i^tes for 
each sewer service: 

$10.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 1.50 per thousand or part thereof over 2,000 gallons 

As of July I, 2020 to current, the water rates were as follows: 

Residential 

Small Business 

$26.00 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 3,30 per thousand thereafter 

S26.60 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 3.30 per thousand thereafter 

Commercial $79.63 for the first 25,000 gallons 
S 3.30 per thousand or part thereof over 25,000 gallons 
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TO~ OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Insurance 


Year Ended June 30, 1021 


Company 

LA Municipal Risk Management 
Agency 

LWCC 

AmGuard 

Lloyds of London 

Hartford Fire Insurance Co. 

Hartford Steam Boiler Co. 

Build Amerjca Mutual 

Assurance Co, 

Policy IYJlC 
General Liability 
Ltiw Enforeement 
A utomobile Liability 
Errors and Omissions 

Workers Compensation 

Commercial Property 

Auto Physical Damage 

Employee Theft 

BoUet & Machinery 

MllnicipaJ BOlid 
Insurance 

Policy Period 
121191'20· 12i1912l 

01101121 ·01101122 

03115121 • 03115122 

12119/20· 12119121 

02125121 - 02.125122 

02Jl3J21 - 02113/22 

04128121 ·06/30143 

Coverage 
$ 	50Q,OOO 

500,000 
50Q,OOO 
500,000 

Legal umits 

2,342,378 

224,897 

1,004,250 

2,638,416 

Balance of 
bonds 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE. LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Compen$atioTi, Benefits and Otlier Payments 

to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor 
Period: 12 Months 

Salary $12,000 
Travel 403 

63 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE. LOUISIANA 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Colleciing/DisbuFsmg Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of llie 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

St. Landry Parish Crime Stoppers 
Louisiana Supreme Court, Judicial College Collections 
La Dept. of Health & Hospitals, Court Costs/fees 

First Six Second Six 
Month Period Month Period 

Ended Ended 
12/31/20 06/30/21 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) $ S 

Add: Collections 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees i 1,437 10,563 
Service/Collection Fees 414 360 
Subtotal Collections 11,S51 10.923 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 

Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement, Criminal Court Costs/Fees 160 142 
Louisiana Supreme Court, CMlS Collections 80 71 

160 142 
4 
5 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Self-Disbursed Town of Leonville, Criminal Court Cost/Fees 1,037 10,199 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or 
processing Agencies 

Payments to 3rd Part>' Collection/Processing Agencies 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

414 

1,851 

360 

10.923 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not 
Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 
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